

CHAPTER 332—H. F. No. 413

An act relating to establishing of state forests and state forest boundaries; amending Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 89.021.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 89.021, is amended to read:

89.021 State forests; boundaries. Subdivision 1. **Established.** For the purpose of vesting and re-vesting the state with title to lands in the areas hereafter described which are suitable primarily for state use and development *There are hereby established and re-established* as state forests, for growing, managing and harvesting timber and other forest crops and for the establishment and development of recreational areas and for the protection of watershed areas, and the preservation and development of rare and distinctive species of flora and fauna native to such areas, *there are hereby established as state forests* all lands and waters now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state, *within the areas, excepting lands acquired for other specific purposes or tax-forfeited lands held in trust for the taxing districts unless incorporated therein as otherwise provided by law,* in the townships and sections described as follows:

Subd. 2: Beltrami Island State Forest.

The West one-half of Township 158 and 159, Range 32; Township 157, Range 32; Townships 157, 158 and 159, Range 33; Townships 157, 158, 159 and 160, Range 34; Townships 157, 158, 159, 160 and 161, Range 35; Townships 158, 159 and 160, Range 36; South one-half of Township 161, Range 36; Townships 159 and 160, Range 37; the South two thirds of Township 161, Range 37; the East two-thirds of township 160, Range 38; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 3: Buena Vista State Forest.

Townships 147 and 148, Range 32; Sections 1, 2 and the West one-half of Section 11; Township 146, Range 33; all of Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 except the South one-half of the Northeast quarter; all of Sections 23, 24, 25, 35 and 36; Township 147, Range 33; Township 148, Range 33, except the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter and the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 10; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 4: Cloquet Valley State Forest.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The North one-half of Township 53, Range 12; Townships 54 and 55, Range 12; the North one-half of Township 53, Range 13; Townships 54 and 55, Range 13; the North one-half of Township 53, Range 14; Townships 54 and 55, Range 14; the North one-half of Township 53, Range 15; Townships 54 and 55, Range 15; Townships 52 and 53, Range 16; East two-thirds of Townships 54 and 55; Range 16; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 5. Crow Wing State Forest:

Township 47, Range 28, except the Northwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 36; Township 47, Range 29; Township 47, Range 30; all west of the 4th principal meridian: Townships 136 and 137, Range 27; Townships 136 and 137, Range 28; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

Subd. 6. D. A. R. Memorial State Forest:

The west one-half of the Northeast quarter and the Northwest quarter of Section 16; Township 43, Range 19; west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 7. Finland State Forest:

Township 58, Range 5; Townships 57 and 58, Range 6; Townships 56, 57 and 58, Range 7; Township 56, Range 8; the East one-half of Townships 57 and 58, Range 8; Section 36; Township 60, Range 9; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 8. Fond du Lac State Forest:

Township 48, Range 19, except Sections 25, 36 and the Northeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 26; Township 49 and the South one-half of Township 50, Range 19; Sections 1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 and 27; Township 49, Range 20; Sections 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 34, 35 and 36; Township 50, Range 20; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 9. Foot Hills State Forest:

Townships 137, 138, 139, 140 and 141, Range 31; Township 137, Range 32, except the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter and the Northwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 12 and the Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 16; Section 36; Township 138, Range 32; the South two-thirds and Sections 1, 2, 3, 9, 10, 11 and 12 of Township 139, Range 32; Section 36; Township 140, Range 32; Township 138, Range 33, except the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 2 and the Southwest quarter of the Southeast quarter

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of Section 32; Sections 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36; Township 139, Range 33; Section 36, Township 140, Range 33; the East one-half of Township 138, Range 34; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

Subd. 10: General C. C. Andrews State Forest.

Sections 5 and 6, Township 44, Range 19; Sections 19, 29, 30, 31 and 32, Township 45, Range 19; the North one-half of Sections 1 and 2; and seven acres adjacent to the Willow River dam in the North one-half of the Southwest quarter of Section 2; Township 44, Range 20; Sections 24, 25, 26, 35 and 36; Township 45, Range 20; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 11: George Washington State Forest.

Townships 59, 60 and the South one-half of Township 61, Range 21, except the East one-half of the Northwest quarter of Section 36; and abandoned right of way across the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 36, both in Township 59, Range 21; Townships 59, 60 and the South one-half of Township 61, Range 22; Townships 59, 60, 61 and 62, Range 23; Townships 59, 60, 61 and 62, Range 24, except the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 20; Township 62, Range 24; Townships 59, 60 and 61, Range 25, but excluding any land designated by law as Scenic State Park; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 12: Grand Portage State Forest.

Townships 61, 62, 63, 64 and 65; Range 3; Townships 62, 63 and 64, Range 4; the Northwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 18; that portion of the North one-half of Section 18 and that portion of Section 7 lying west of the Old Grand Portage Indian Reservation boundary in Township 63, Range 5; all east of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 13: Kabetogama State Forest.

Townships 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68 and 69; Range 17; Townships 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69 and 70; Range 18; Townships 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69 and 70; Range 19, except the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter, Section 6; Township 63, Range 19; Townships 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70 and 71, Range 20; Townships 67, 68, 69, 70 and 71; and that portion of Townships 64, 65 and 66 lying outside of the old Nett Lake Indian Reservation boundaries; all lying in Range 21; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 14. Kooehiehing State Forest.

Townships 64 and 65, Range 24; Townships 64 and 65, Range 25; Townships 64, 65, 66 and 67, Range 26; Townships 64, 65, 66 and 67, Range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 15. Land O'Lakes State Forest.

Townships 139 and 140, Range 25; Townships 139 and 140, Range 26; Townships 139 and 140, Range 27; Sections 16 and 36 of Township 139, Range 28; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 16. Mille Laes State Forest.

The West two-thirds of Township 45, Range 26, Township 45, Range 27, except the Northeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 16 and the South one-half of the Southwest quarter and the South one-half of the Northeast quarter of Section 22; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 17. Mississippi Headwaters State Forest.

The North one-third and Sections 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 29 and 30 of Township 146, Range 34, except the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 8; the South five-sixths of Township 147, Range 34, except the Northeast quarter of the Northeast quarter, the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter and the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 24; the West one-half and Sections 2, 3, 10 and 11 of Township 145, Range 35; Township 146, Range 35, except Sections 3, 4, 5 and 6; Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24, 25, 35 and 36; Township 147, Range 35, except the Northwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 24; Sections 19, 20, 21, 22 and the South one-third of Township 148, Range 35; Sections 1, 12, 13, 24, 25 and 36; Township 145, Range 36; Sections 12, 13, 24, 25 and 36; Township 146, Range 36; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 18. Nemadji State Forest.

Fractional townships 44, 45, and 46, Range 15; the south one-third of fractional township 47, range 15; Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9; Township 43, range 16; townships 44, 45, and 46, range 16, except the north half of the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter section 16; township 46, range 16; the south one-third of township 47, range 16; sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12 of township 43, range 17; sections 1, 2, 11, 12, 13, 14, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 34, 35, and 36; township 44, range 17; the east one-third of township 45, range 17; township 46, range 17, except the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter;

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

and the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of section 16; township 46; range 17; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 19: Northwest Angle State Forest.

Townships 166, 167 and 168; Range 33; Townships 166, 167 and 168; Range 34; Townships 165, 166, 167 and 168; Range 35; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 20: Paul Bunyan State Forest.

Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8; Township 141; Range 32; Township 142; Range 32; Sections 7, 18 and 19; and the South one-third of Township 143; Range 32; Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11 and 12; Township 141; Range 33; Township 142; Range 33; except Sections 19, 20, 29, 30, 31 and 32; Township 143; Range 33; Sections 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34; Township 144; Range 33; Sections 16 and 36; Township 142; Range 34; Townships 143 and 144; Range 34; Township 145; Range 34; except Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 17, 18, 19 and 20; Section 36; Township 146; Range 34; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 21: Pillsbury State Forest.

That portion of Township 133; Range 29; lying north of the Northern Pacific Railroad in Cass County; that portion of Township 133; Range 30 lying north of the Northern Pacific Railroad; the West one-half of Township 134; Range 29; all of Township 134; Range 30; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 22: Pine Island State Forest.

Townships 152, 153, 154, 155 and 156; Range 25; that portion of Township 157; Range 25; lying west of the Big Fork River; that part of Sections 31, 32 and 33; Township 158; Range 25; lying south of the Black River; Townships 152, 153, 154, 155, 156 and 157; Range 26; that part of Township 158; Range 26; lying south of the Black River; Townships 153, 154, 155, 156 and 157; Range 27; that part of Township 158; Range 27; lying south of the Black River; Townships 153, 154, 155 and 156; Range 28; Townships 153, 154 and 155; Range 29; the East five-sixths of Township 153; Range 30; the South one-half of Township 154; Range 30; Lots 2, 3 and 4 of Section 8; the South one-half of the Northwest quarter and the Southwest quarter of Section 9; the Northwest quarter of Section 16; Section 17; all in Township 154; Range 30; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 23: Rum River State Forest.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by strikeout.

The West two-thirds of Township 40, Range 25; Township 41, and the South one-half of Township 42, Range 25; the east one-third of Township 40, Range 26; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 24: Sand Dunes State Forest:

All of sections 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 35, and 36, all in Township 34, Range 27; west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 25: Savannah State Forest:

That portion of Township 48, Range 22, north of the present location of the Northern Pacific Railroad right of way; Townships 49, 50, 51 and 52, Range 22, except the North one-half of the Northeast quarter of Section 36, and the East one-half of the Southeast quarter and the North one-half of the Southwest quarter of Section 10; Township 49, Range 22; that portion of Township 48, Range 23, lying north of the present location of Northern Pacific Railroad right of way; Townships 49 and 50, Range 23; that portion of Townships 51 and 52, Range 23, lying east of the Mississippi River; except the North half of the Southwest quarter of Section 16, Township 52, Range 23; that portion of Townships 50 and 51, Range 24, lying east of the Mississippi River; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

That part of Townships 51 and 52 lying westerly of the Mississippi River; Range 23; that part of Township 51 lying westerly of the Mississippi River and all of Township 52, Range 24; Townships 51 and 52, Range 25; Sections 1, 12, 13, 24, 25 and 36; in Township 51, and Sections 25 and 36 in Township 52; Range 26; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 26: Smoky Hills State Forest:

Sections 5, 6, 7 and 8, Township 140, Range 36; Township 141, Range 36, except the Southwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 4; the North five-sixths of Township 139, Range 37; Township 140, Range 37, except Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14; the East one-sixth of Township 141, Range 37; Township 140, Range 38, except the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 32; the West two-thirds of Township 141, Range 38; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

Subd. 27: St. Croix State Forest:

Fractional Township 42, Range 15; Townships 41 and 42, Range 16; Townships 41 and 42, Range 17; except the Northeast

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 16, Township 41, Range 17; all west of the 4th principal meridian:

Subd. 28. Third River State Forest.

The North one-half of Township 147, Range 29; Township 148 Range 29; the South one-half of Township 149, Range 29; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

Subd. 29. White Earth State Forest.

Township 144, Range 36; except the Southwest quarter of Section 35; Townships 142, 143 and 144, Range 37; Townships 142, 143 and 144, Range 38; Township 145, Range 38; except Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 10; the East one-half of Township 142, Range 39; Sections 25, 35, 36 and the East one-half of Section 34, Township 143, Range 39; the East one-third of Township 145, Range 39; the South one-half of Section 10; Section 15; and the North one-half of Section 22; Township 145, Range 39; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

Subd. 30. Blackduck State Forest.

All of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, and 14 except the Southwest quarter of the Southeast quarter; all of Sections 15, 16, 17 and 18; Township 149, Range 31; the West two-thirds of Township 150, Range 31; except the Southeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 29; Sections 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34; Township 151, Range 31; Township 149, Range 32; except the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 25; Township 150, Range 32; except the Northeast quarter of Section 36; and all of Township 151, Range 32; lying south and east of the Indian Reservation boundary; all west of the 5th principal meridian:

All lands except tax forfeited lands held in trust for the taxing districts; now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state within the boundaries of the above described areas are hereby withdrawn from sale and established as state forests; to be governed, operated; managed; and controlled on forestry principles:

The commissioner of conservation is hereby authorized to withdraw from the Grand Portage Forest, and to offer for sale and to sell during 1943 the following described land:

Commencing at the corner of Sections 27, 28, 33 and 34, Township 62 North, Range 3 East; thence due south along the section line between sections 33 and 34 for a distance of 1585.6 feet to an iron pin (one inch square and 12 inches long) being

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

the meander corner to sections 33 and 34, Township 62 North, Range 3 East; thence at an angle of 81 degrees and 24 minutes to the left (being South 81 degrees and 24 minutes East) for a distance of 469.4 feet to an "x" mark on a ledge rock; being the point of beginning of this survey; thence at an angle of 35 degrees and 46 minutes to the left (being North 62 degrees and 50 minutes East) for a distance of 677.3 feet to a 4" x 4" cedar post; thence at an angle of 18 degrees and 20 minutes to the right (being North 81 degrees and 10 minutes East) for a distance of 228.3 feet; thence at an angle of 18 degrees and 27 minutes to the left (being North 62 degrees and 43 minutes East) for a distance of 375.4 feet to a 4" x 4" cedar post; thence at an angle of 13 degrees and 13 minutes to the right (being North 75 degrees and 56 minutes East) for a distance of 333.8 feet to a 4" x 4" cedar post; thence at an angle of 32 degrees and 50 minutes to the left (being North 43 degrees and 06 minutes East) for a distance of 150.0 feet to a 4" x 4" cedar post; thence at an angle of 72 degrees and 36 minutes to the right (being South 64 degrees and 18 minutes East) for a distance of 99.6 feet to a 3/4 inch iron pipe; thence at an angle of 115 degrees and 42 minutes to the left (being North 0 degrees and 00 minutes West) and paralleling the West line of Section 34; for a distance of 992.5 feet to the section line; being the north line of Government Lot 1; thence at an angle of 90 degrees and 00 minutes to the left (being North 90 degrees and 00 minutes West) along the north line of Government lot 1 for a distance of 210.5 feet to the center line of former trunk highway No. 61; thence at an angle of 55 degrees and 28 minutes to the left (being South 34 degrees and 02 minutes West) for a distance of 1331.8 feet along the center line of said former trunk highway; thence deflect to the right on a 6 degree and 00 minute curve; delta angle 58 degrees and 30 minutes; for a distance of 911.70 feet along the center line of said highway; thence leaving the center line of said highway at this point and turning to the left (being South 20 degrees and 24 minutes East) for a distance of 139.9 feet to an "X" mark on a ledge rock to the point of beginning; and here terminating; containing 16.66 acres in Government Lot 1, which includes .99 acres right-of-way (33 feet in width to the south and east of center line of road; Government Lot 2 contains 1.34 acres of this survey which includes .74 acres of right of way (33 feet in width to the south and east of center line of road); excepting therefrom that part of former Trunk Highway No. 61 contained in said description.

In the same manner as provided for the sale of other state school land:

The commissioner of conservation is hereby authorized to withdraw from the Headwaters State Forest all that portion of

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 36; Township 147; Range 34 lying north of U. S. highway number 2 as now located and constructed; and to offer for sale and to sell such tract, together with the Northwest Quarter; and the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 30; Township 147; Range 33; as hereinafter provided:

Before any sale is made, the commissioner shall cause published notice to be made of the time and place of sale at least seven days in advance thereof in a legal newspaper of Beltrami county. The lands shall be offered as a unit and shall be sold at not less than the appraised value thereof. The right shall be reserved in the commissioner of conservation to reject any or all bids.

The city of Bemidji is hereby authorized to bid on and acquire title to said lands for the purpose of establishing an airport:

Subd. 31. Chengwatana State Forest.

For the purpose of vesting and revesting the state with title to lands in the areas hereafter described which are suitable primarily for state use and development as a state forest, for growing; managing; and harvesting timber and other forest crops and for the establishment and development of recreational areas and for the protection of watershed areas; and the preservation and development of rare and distinctive species of flora native to such areas; there is hereby established as a state forest all lands and waters now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state within the areas; in the townships and sections described as follows; to be known as the Chengwatana State Forest:

Township 39; Range 19; all of the lands in Sections 4; 5; 6; 7; 8; 9; 17; 18; 19; 20; 29; 30; and 31 lying west of the Kettle River and the St. Croix River; Township 39; Range 20; all of Sections 1; 2; 11; 12; 13; 14; 23; 24; 25; 26; 35; and 36. Township 40; Range 20; all that part of Sections 14; 23; and 24 lying south of the Kettle River; all of Sections 25; 26; 35; and 36.

All lands now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state within the boundaries of the above described areas are hereby withdrawn from sale and established as a state forest; to be governed; operated; managed; and controlled on forestry principles:

Subd. 32. White Pine State Forest.

Except as otherwise hereinafter provided; all lands and waters now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state within the boundaries of the areas hereinafter described and not dedicated for other purposes pursuant to law are hereby withdrawn from sale and established as a state forest; to be known as the White Pine

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

State Forest, to be governed, operated, managed, and controlled on forestry principles for forestry purposes and other purposes incidental thereto as provided by law:

The areas comprising said state forest are described as follows: Township 44, Range 22; the West One-half of Township 45, Range 22; the North One-half of Township 44, Range 23; Township 45, Range 23; and Sections 1, 12, 13 and 24 of Township 45, Range 24; west of the 4th Principal Meridian, in the county of Aitkin:

Tax forfeited lands held in trust for the taxing districts shall not be included in said state forest unless incorporated therein as otherwise provided by law:

Subd. 33. Golden Anniversary State Forest.

All lands and waters now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state, within the boundaries of the area hereinafter described, and not dedicated for other purposes pursuant to law, are hereby withdrawn from sale and established as a state forest, to be known as the Golden Anniversary state forest, to be governed, operated, managed and controlled on forestry principles and for such purposes incidental thereto as provided by law:

The area comprising said state forest is described as follows: Section 18; township 54, range 24 west of the fourth principal meridian:

Tax-forfeited lands held in trust for the taxing district shall not be included in said state forest unless incorporated therein as otherwise provided by law:

Subd. 34. Memorial Hardwood State Forest.

All lands and waters now owned by the state or hereafter acquired by the state within the boundaries of the area hereinafter described and not dedicated for other purposes pursuant to law are hereby withdrawn from sale and established as a state forest, to be known as the Minnesota Memorial Hardwood state forest, to be governed, operated, managed and controlled on forestry principles and other purposes incidental thereto as provided by law:

The areas comprising said state forest are described as follows: Townships 101 to 105 inclusive, range 4; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 5; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 6; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 7; townships 101 to 108 inclusive, range 8; townships 101 to 110 inclusive, range 9; townships 102 to 110 inclusive, range 10; townships 102 to 111 inclusive, range

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

11; townships 102 to 105 inclusive, and townships 108 to 112 inclusive, range 12; township 105 and townships 109 to 113 inclusive, range 13; townships 108 to 112 inclusive, range 14; the north half of township 107, townships 108, 109, 112 and the west half of township 113, all in range 15; townships 112 to 114 inclusive, range 16; and townships 112 to 114 inclusive, range 17; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Tax forfeited lands held in trust for the taxing districts shall not be included in said state forest unless incorporated therein as otherwise provided by law.

Subd. 2. Badoura State Forest.

The north one-third of township 139, range 32, except sections 11 and 12; sections 15, 16, 22, 23, 26, 27, 34, 35 and 36 of township 139, range 32; section 36 of township 140, range 32; sections 1, 2, 12 and 36 of township 139, range 33; section 36 of township 140, range 33; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 3. Battleground State Forest.

Sections 4 to 9 inclusive, and sections 15 to 25 inclusive and that part of sections 26, 27, 28, 30, 35 and 36 lying north of the Boy river in township 143, range 28; sections 12, 13, 14, 23, 24, 25, 26, 35 and 36 of township 143, range 29; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 4. Bear Island State Forest.

Townships 61, 62 and 63, range 11; township 61, range 12; townships 61 and 62, range 13; township 61, range 14, except the lands acquired for state park purposes; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 5. Beltrami Island State Forest.

Township 157, range 32; the west one-half of townships 158 and 159, range 32; townships 157, 158 and 159, range 33; townships 155, 156, 157, 158, 159 and 160, range 34; the southwest quarter and sections 8, 9, 16, 17, 18, 22, 27, 34 and 35 of township 161, range 34; townships 155, 156, 157, 158, 159, 160 and 161, range 35; the north one-third and sections 13, 24, 25 and 36 of township 156, range 36; townships 157, 158, 159 and 160, range 36; the south one-half and sections 11, 12, 13 and 14 of township 161, range 36; the north one-third, except sections 7 and 8 of township 156, range 37; townships 157, 158, 159 and 160, range 37; the south two-thirds of township 161, range 37, sections 1, 2, 3

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

and 12 of township 159, range 38; the east two-thirds of township 160, range 38; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 6. Big Fork State Forest.

The northwest quarter of township 61, range 26; the west one-half of township 62, range 26; townships 61 and 62, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Townships 149 and 150, range 25; township 150, range 26; township 150, range 27; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 7. Birch Lakes State Forest.

Section 36 of township 127, range 33; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 8. Blackduck State Forest.

The north five-sixths of township 148, range 28; township 149, range 28; the north one-half of township 147, range 29; township 148, range 29; the south one-half of township 149, range 29; township 148, range 30; the south two-thirds of township 148, range 31; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 9. Bowstring State Forest.

The north one-half of township 57, range 26; township 58, range 26; the north one-half of township 57, range 27; township 58, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian. Townships 146 and 147, range 25; that part of township 144, range 26, lying northwesterly of the Leech Lake river and southwesterly of the Mississippi river; townships 145, 146 and 147, range 26; that part of townships 143 and 144, range 27, lying north of the Leech Lake river; townships 145, 146 and 147, and the south one-sixth of township 148, range 27; that part of townships 143 and 144, range 28, lying north of Leech Lake and Leech Lake river; townships 145, 146, 147 and the south one-sixth of township 148, range 28; sections 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 of township 143, range 29; townships 144, 145, 146 and the south one-half of township 147, range 29; the north five-sixths of township 143, range 30; townships 144 and 145, range 30; sections 1, 11, 12, 13, 14, 23, 24, 25 and 26 of township 143, range 31; the east one-sixth of township 144, range 31; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 10. Buena Vista State Forest.

That part of township 146, range 30, lying north of Cass Lake and the Mississippi river; township 147, range 30; township 147, range 31; the north one-half and sections 19 and 20 of township

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

147, range 32; township 148, range 32; the west one-half of township 149, range 32; sections 24, 25, 35 and 36 of township 147, range 33; the east one-half of township 148, range 33; that part of township 149, range 33, lying east of the old Indian Reservation boundary; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 11. Burntside State Forest.

Townships 63 and 64, range 13; the southeast quarter of township 65, range 13; township 63, range 14; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 12. Chengwatana State Forest.

All of township 39, range 19, lying west of the Kettle and St. Croix rivers; the east one-third of township 39, range 20; sections 25, 26, 35 and 36 and those portions of sections 14, 23 and 24, lying south of the Kettle river in township 40, range 20; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 13. Cloquet Valley State Forest.

The north one-half of township 53, range 12; townships 54 and 55, range 12; section 36, township 56, range 12; lots 4 and 6, section 26 of township 58, range 12; the north one-half of township 53, range 13; townships 54 and 55, range 13; section 36 of township 56, range 13; the north one-half of township 53, range 14; townships 54 and 55, range 14; section 36 of township 56, range 14; the north one-half of township 53, range 15; townships 54 and 55, range 15; townships 52 and 53, range 16; the east two-thirds and sections 5, 6 and 8 of township 54, range 16; the east two-thirds and sections 5, 6, 31 and 32 of township 55, range 16; the south one-third of township 56, range 16; the east one-sixth and section 14 of township 53, range 17; section 36 of townships 54 and 55, range 17; sections 1 and 12 of township 55, range 18; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 14. Crow Wing State Forest.

Sections 16, 17, 19, 20, 21, 28, 29 and 30, and the south one-sixth of township 47, range 29; sections 25 and 36 of township 47, range 30; all west of the 4th principal meridian. Sections 2 to 6 inclusive, 9 to 16 inclusive, 23 to 26 inclusive, and sections 35 and 36, township 136, range 27; section 36, township 136, range 28; the southeast quarter and sections 13, 14, 15, 16, 21, 28, 31, 32 and 33 of township 137, range 27; section 36, township 137, range 28; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 15. D. A. R. State Forest.

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 16 of township 43, range 19; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 16. Emily State Forest.

Section 36, township 138, range 26; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 17. Finland State Forest.

Township 58, range 5, except sections 1, 2, 11 and 12; the north one-half of township 58, range 6; the south two-thirds of township 59, ranges 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10; the west one-half of township 57, range 7; township 58, range 7; townships 57 and 58, range 8; the north two-thirds of township 57, range 9; township 58, range 9; the north two-thirds of township 57, range 10; township 58, range 10; section 36 of township 56, range 11; the east two-thirds of township 57, range 11; township 58, range 11, except sections 19, 20, 29, 30, 31 and 32; township 59, range 11; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 18. Fond du Lac State Forest.

Section 18, township 48, range 18; the northeast quarter of the southwest quarter, section 13 of township 47, range 19; township 48, range 19, except sections 25 and 36; township 49, range 19; the east one-half of township 49, range 20, except sections 34, 35 and 36; the south one-sixth of township 50, range 19; sections 34, 35 and 36 of township 50, range 20; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 19. Foot Hills State Forest.

The northwest quarter of township 137, range 31; sections 3, 4, 9, 10, 15, 16, 21, 22, 27, 28, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 138, range 31; sections 16, 21, 22, 27, 28, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 139, range 31; sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 23, 24, 25, 26 and 36 of township 140, range 31; the east one-half and sections 28, 32 and 33 of township 137, range 32; section 36 of township 138, range 32; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 20. General C. C. Andrews State Forest.

Sections 5 and 6, township 44, range 19; sections 19, 30, 31 and 36 of township 45, range 19; the north one-half of sections 1 and 2, township 44, range 20; sections 24, 25, 26, 35 and 36 of township 45, range 20; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 21. George Washington State Forest.

The north five-sixths of township 59, range 22; townships 60 and 61, range 22; the west one-half of township 62, range 22; townships

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

59, 60, 61 and 62, range 23; townships 59, 60, 61 and 62, range 24; township 59, range 25, except sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 18; township 60, range 25, except lands acquired for Scenic State Park; the east one-half, the southeast quarter of section 4, sections 16, 19, 20, 21, 28, 29, 30, 31 and 33 of township 61, range 25; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 22. Golden Anniversary State Forest.

Section 18, township 54, range 24; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 23. Grand Portage State Forest.

Township 61, range 3; township 62, range 3, except land acquired for state park purposes; township 63, range 3; township 64, range 3, except sections 6, 7, 17, 18, the west one-half of 19, and the northwest quarter of section 30; township 62, 63 and 64, range 4; lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 of section 7, the east one-half of the northwest quarter and lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6 of section 18, township 63, range 5; all east of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 24. Hill River State Forest.

Townships 51 and 52, range 25; township 50, range 26; the east one-half of township 51, range 26; the southwest quarter and sections 25, 27, 34, 35 and 36 of township 52, range 26; township 50, range 27; the north one-half and sections 24, 25 and 36 of township 52, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 25. Huntersville State Forest.

Section 16, township 138, range 33; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 26. Insula Lake State Forest.

Section 36, township 63, range 8; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 27. Kabetogama State Forest.

The south one-half and sections 16, 17 and 18 of township 63, range 16; townships 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68 and 69, range 17; townships 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69 and 70, range 18; townships 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69 and 70, range 19; the south two-thirds of township 63, range 20, except sections 29, 30, 31 and 32; townships 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70 and 71, range 20; sections 13, 14, 23, 24, 25, 26, 35 and 36 of township 63, range 21; those portions of townships 64, 65 and 66, range 21, lying outside the Nett Lake (Bois)

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

Indian Reservation boundary; townships 67, 68, 69, 70 and 71, range 21; the northeast quarter of section 25, the northeast quarter of the southwest quarter and the north one-half of the southeast quarter of section 29, the north one-half of the south one-half, section 33, all in township 69, range 22; the southeast quarter of the northeast quarter and the northeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 1, township 70, range 22; the northwest quarter of section 21, township 69, range 23; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 28. *Koochiching State Forest.*

The southwest quarter and sections 15, 16, 17, 18, 22, 26, 27, 34, 35 and 36 of township 63, range 22; that portion of township 64, range 22, lying outside of the old Nett Lake Indian Reservation boundary; township 63, range 23; that part of township 64, range 23, lying south of the old Nett Lake Indian Reservation boundary; that part of township 65, range 23, lying west of the old Nett Lake Indian Reservation boundary; townships 63, 64 and 65, range 24; townships 63, 64 and 65, range 25; the northwest quarter and sections 19, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, the east one-half of the southeast quarter of section 22, the southwest quarter of section 23, the west one-half and the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 23, all in township 66, range 25; townships 63 to 67 inclusive, range 26; the south one-sixth of township 68, range 26; townships 63 to 67 inclusive, range 27; sections 14, 23, 26, 35 and 36 of township 68, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 29. *Lake Isabella State Forest.*

Section 36, township 62, range 8; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 30. *Lake Jeanette State Forest.*

The north one-half of township 65, range 15; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 31. *Land O'Lakes State Forest.*

The south one-sixth and sections 16, 20, 21, 28, 29 and 30 of township 139, range 26; sections 7, 16, 18, 19, 36 and lot 1 of section 27 and lot 8 of section 15, township 140, range 26; section 36 of township 139, range 27; section 36 of township 139, range 28; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 32. *Lyons State Forest.*

Section 36, township 136, range 33; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

Subd. 33. Minnesota Memorial Hardwood State Forest.

Townships 101 to 105 inclusive, range 4; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 5; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 6; townships 101 to 106 inclusive, range 7; townships 101 to 108 inclusive, range 8; townships 101 to 110 inclusive, range 9; townships 102 to 110 inclusive, range 10; townships 102 to 111 inclusive, range 11; townships 102 to 105 inclusive, and townships 108 to 112 inclusive, range 12; township 105 and townships 109 to 113 inclusive, range 13; townships 108 to 112 inclusive, range 14; the north one-half of township 107, townships 108, 109, 112 and the west one-half of township 113, all in range 15; townships 112 to 114 inclusive, range 16; and townships 112 to 114 inclusive, range 17; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 34. Mississippi Headwaters State Forest.

The northwest quarter and sections 10, 19, 20, 28, 29, 30 and 36 of township 146, range 34; the west one-half of township 147, range 34, except sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9; the northwest quarter of township 145, range 35; the south one-third and sections 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 21, 22, 23 and 24 of township 146, range 35; sections 1, 2, 11, 14, 15, 16, 21, 22, 27 and 28 of township 144, range 36; section 36 of township 145, range 36; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 35. Nemadji State Forest.

Fractional townships 44, 45 and the south two-thirds of township 46, range 15; sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of township 43, range 16; townships 44 and 45, range 16; the southeast quarter and sections 13, 14, 15, 31, 32 and 33 of township 46, range 16; the north one-third of township 43, range 17, except sections 6 and 7; the east one-third of township 44, range 17, the east one-half of the northeast quarter of section 10, and sections 20, 21, 22, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33 and 34; the east one-third and sections 10, 15, 16, 21, 22, 27, 28 and 29 of township 45, range 17; section 36 of township 46, range 17; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 36. Northwest Angle State Forest.

Townships 166, 167 and 168, range 33; townships 166, 167 and 168, range 34; townships 165, 166, 167 and 168, range 35; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 37. Pat Bayle State Forest.

The north two-thirds of township 62, range 1; township 63, range 1; sections 16, 17 and 18 and the southwest quarter of town-

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

ship 64, range 1; all east of the 4th principal meridian. The north two-thirds of township 62, range 1; sections 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and the east one-half of township 63, range 1; sections 13, 14, 15, 23, 24, 25, 26, 35 and 36 of township 64, range 1; township 62, range 2; the north one-half of township 61, range 3; township 62, range 3, except sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9; townships 61 and 62, range 4; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 38. Paul Bunyan State Forest.

Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 of township 141, range 32; township 142, range 32; sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 16 of township 141, range 33; the east two-thirds and sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 17 and 18 of township 142, range 33; the south one-half and section 16 of township 143, range 33; sections 29, 30, 31 and 32 of township 144, range 33; section 36 of township 142, range 34; the northwest quarter and sections 3, 10 and 36 of township 143, range 34; the east five-sixths of township 144, range 34; sections 16, 21, 22, 27, 28, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 145, range 34; sections 1, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16 of township 143, range 35; section 36 of township 144, range 35; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 39. Pillsbury State Forest.

Sections 6, 7 and 18 of township 134, range 29; section 1, sections 8 to 16 inclusive, sections 20 to 27 inclusive, and sections 34, 35 and 36 of township 134, range 30; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 40. Pine Island State Forest.

Townships 151 to 157 inclusive, range 25; that portion of sections 23, 24, 25, 26, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 158, range 25, lying south and east of the Black river; townships 151 to 157 inclusive, range 26; that part of township 158, range 26, lying south of the Black river; townships 151 to 158 inclusive, range 27; townships 152 to 159 inclusive, range 28, except sections 1, 2, 12 and 13 of township 159, range 28; townships 152 to 159 inclusive, range 29, except section 6 of township 159, range 29; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 41. Red Lake State Forest.

The north one-third and sections 17, 18, 19 and 20 of township 152, range 30; township 153, range 30, except sections 6, 7, 18 and 19; township 154, range 30, except sections 5 and 8; the northeast quarter and sections 23 and 24 of township 152, range 31; the south one-sixth and sections 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 and 27, except the northwest quarter of section 27, township 153, range 31; sections

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

25, 26, 35 and 36 of township 153, range 32; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 42. Remer State Forest.

The east two-thirds of township 142, range 25, except sections 1, 2, 3 and 4; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 43. Rum River State Forest.

The west one-half of section 5, sections 6, 7 and 18, the west one-half of section 19 and the northwest quarter of section 8, township 39, range 25; sections 16 and 31 of township 40, range 25; the north two-thirds of township 39, range 26, except sections 6, 7, 18 and 19; sections 20, 21, 22, 23, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 40, range 26; sections 25 to 36 inclusive of township 42, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 44. St. Croix State Forest.

Section 31, township 42, range 15; township 41, range 16; the southwest quarter and sections 15, 16, 17, 18, 22, 27, 34, 35 and 36 of township 42, range 16; sections 1, 2, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 22 of township 41, range 17; the south two-thirds of township 42, range 17; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 45. Sand Dunes State Forest.

Sections 13 to 17 inclusive, sections 20 to 29 inclusive, sections 35 and 36, and the north one-half of the north one-half of section 33, all in township 34, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 46. Savanna State Forest.

The north two-thirds of township 50, range 21, except sections 1, 12, 13, 14, 23 and 24; townships 49, 50 and 51, range 22; the south two-thirds and sections 11 and 12 of township 52, range 22; townships 49, 50, 51 and the south two-thirds of township 52, range 23; section 36 of township 50, range 24; townships 51 and 52, range 24; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 47. Smokey Bear State Forest.

Sections 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 21, 22, 23, 26, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34 and 35, township 69, range 26; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 48. Smokey Hills State Forest.

The northeast quarter and sections 4, 9 and 16 of township 139, range 37; township 140, range 37, except the north one-sixth and

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

sections 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 31 and 32; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 49. Solana State Forest.

Township 44, range 22, except sections 1, 2, 3, 10, 11 and 12; the west one-half of township 45, range 22, the north one-half of township 44, range 23; township 45, range 23; sections 1, 12, 13 and 24 of township 45, range 24; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 50. Sturgeon River State Forest.

The north two-thirds of township 61, range 17; township 62, range 17; the east one-half and sections 28, 29, 30, 31, 32 and 33 of township 61, range 18, excluding sections 1, 2 and 3; the south one-third and sections 5, 6, 7, 8 and 15 to 22 inclusive of township 61, range 19; the south one-half except sections 23 and 24 of township 61, range 20; the south one-half and sections 17 and 18 of township 62, range 20; the east one-half of the northeast quarter of section 31, township 58, range 21; the north one-half of township 59, range 21; township 60, range 21; the south one-half of township 61, range 21; sections 19 through 30 inclusive of township 62, range 21; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 51. Two Inlets State Forest.

Township 141, range 36; sections 34, 35 and 36 of township 142, range 36; west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 52. Wealthwood State Forest.

The northwest quarter and sections 3, 10, 15, 19 and 30 of township 45, range 26; the east one-third of township 45, range 27; all west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 53. Welsh Lake State Forest.

Sections 2 to 10 inclusive of township 143, range 31; sections 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 23, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 34 and 35 of township 144, range 31; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 54. White Earth State Forest.

Township 142, range 37; the north one-half and sections 19 and 30 of township 144, range 37; sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, 11, 14 and 15 of township 145, range 37; sections 25, 34, ~~35~~ and 36 of township 146, range 37; township 142, range 38, except sections 29, 30, 31 and 32; township 143, range 38, except sections 2, 3, 10, 11 and 12; the north one-sixth and sections 11, 12, 14 and 15 of township 144,

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

range 38; the southwest quarter and sections 17 and 18 of township 145, range 38; the northeast quarter of township 142, range 39; the west one-half of section 21 and sections 24, 25, 28, 33, 34, 35 and 36 of township 143, range 39; the east one-third and sections 3, 10, 15 and 22 of township 145, range 39; sections 35 and 36 of township 146, range 39; all west of the 5th principal meridian.

Subd. 55. *Whiteface River State Forest.*

Sections 16, 20, 21, 28, 29, 32 and 33 of township 53, range 18; west of the 4th principal meridian.

Subd. 56. *Administrative and Scattered State Forest Land.*

The northeast quarter of the northeast quarter of section 22, township 139, range 26; the northeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 9, township 142, range 36; the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 26, township 142, range 39; the southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of section 27, township 142, range 39; the northeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 7, township 46, range 17; government lot 1 in section 5, township 140, range 25; government lot 7 in section 7, township 140, range 25; government lot 8 in section 7, township 140, range 25; the northeast quarter of the northeast quarter of section 32, township 143, range 27; the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 3, township 140, range 28; the southeast quarter of section 6, township 140, range 30; the northwest quarter of the southwest quarter, section 1, township 144, range 36; the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of section 30, township 144, range 36; the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 31, township 144, range 36; the southwest quarter of the southwest quarter of section 13, township 143, range 37; the east one half of the southeast quarter of section 14, township 143, range 37; the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of section 30, township 145, range 37; the east one half of the northwest quarter of section 9, township 135, range 28; government lots 2 and 3 in section 9, township 136, range 28; the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter of section 11, township 136, range 29; the southeast quarter of section 22, township 44, range 28; the northeast quarter of the northeast quarter of section 29, township 144, range 33; the west one half of the northwest quarter of section 34, township 143, range 35; the south one half of the southwest quarter of section 35, township 143, range 35; the northwest quarter of the northwest quarter and the northwest quarter of the southwest quarter in section 8, township 143, range 35; the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter in section 32, township 143, range 35; the northwest quarter of the southwest quarter of section 9, township 56, range 25; the southeast quarter of the south-

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

west quarter of section 12, township 66, range 25; the southwest quarter of the southwest quarter of section 22, township 42, range 25; the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of section 13, township 45, range 20; the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of section 16, township 50, range 16; the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 30, township 52, range 17; the southeast quarter of the northeast quarter of section 11, township 50, range 19; government lot 1 of section 6, township 67, range 16; government lot 2, in section 6, township 67, range 16; government lot 5 in section 7, township 67, range 16; the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 30, township 145, range 37.

Sec. 2. *Upon the effective date of this act all the certificates of the commissioner of conservation reserving certain state lands for state forest purposes heretofore issued pursuant to provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 89.01, are hereby cancelled.*

Approved April 25, 1963.

CHAPTER 333—S. F. No. 311

An act relating to the duties of the commissioner of highways; amending Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 161.08.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 161.08, is amended to read:

161.08 **Highways; records; books of account.** The commissioner shall keep accurate and complete books of account of such character as may be prescribed by the public examiner, the same to show in detail itemized receipts and disbursements of the trunk highway fund. The books of account shall show the following facts, among others:

(1) The expenses of maintaining the highway department, including the salaries and expenses of the individual members thereof;

(2) The amounts of money expended in each county of the state for the construction ~~or maintenance~~ of trunk highways, and when, where, and upon what job or portion of road expended so that the cost per mile of such construction ~~or maintenance~~ can be easily ascertained;

(3) Any other money expended by the state in connection

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.